Titiokura Saddle - 32 miles from Napier ( 51.5 km) Elevation 2,460 feet ( 750m).
At the Southern end of Maungaharuru Range.

During the Maori Wars - (Hau Hau wars, 1864-72). 1869 a constabulary stockade was built on a prominent site
over looking the Mohaka Valley and south east towards Napier.
UR¢ the NZ Wars: A history of the Maori Campaign and Pioneering Period Volume 11. - Posts on the Napier
upo Road Chapter 34.

Napier-Taupo Highway from above Titiokura looking South Mark Dunnett
Survey Services HB




Titiokura Saddle 750 meters (2,460 feet) - Napicr Taupo Road, Mohaka Valley side. Vauxhall car on
new deviation road 1914. Note : old coach road, centre of photo. The next major deviation mid 1960’s
reverted back to following roughly the alignment of the old coach road. : Photo 24™ April 1914,



Napier Taupo Road - descending Titiokura Hill into the Mohaka River valley. : Photo 1919.



Titiokura Hill -View of Kaweka Ranges. Photo 1968.



The tortuous climb up the old road to Titiokura Summit — ‘aoking south NI Aerial Mapping Ltd



ht of saddle. Te Pohue below on the other side of Te W
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Napier Taupo Road crossing the Titiokura saddle. Road improvements, (Mohaka valley side). 24™ April 1915.
Motor car travels the old route while the coach descends on the new deviation road.
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AN
MR A. 1. KENNARD, secretary of the Auto-
mobile Association (Hawke’s Bay), with traffic
signs to be positioned today on the Titiokura
deviation which is to be opened this week. Mr
Kennard is holding the . first sign of its kind
to be used in Hawke’s Bay. It tells motorists
the three-lane road is changing to two-lanes.



TITIOKURA DEVIATION opened, Thursday, 12* May 1966.

Hawke’s Bay Motor Co, AEC Coach No27. EN7428. Top of Titiokura hill - Napier
Taupo Road. Driver Merv Doidge, standing nearest coach Arthur Giles HB Motor Co,
manager.



Hawke’s Bay Motor Co, AEC Coach No27. EN7428. Top of Titiokura hill.
Napier Taupo Road. This coach on the Motor Co’s daily service from
Napier to Wairaikei was the first vehicle over this new deviation.

Opened 12" May 1966. Driver Merv Doidge.
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opened to traffic this morning.

g,

FOG BLANKETED the top cut in the Titiokura deviation, which was
This first vehicle through was a
Hawke's Bay Motor Co. Ltd. bus, pictured at the head of the cavalcade

of cars.

Titiokura down—
but not yet out

The notorious Titiokura Saddle—one of the
greatest hazards on the Napier-Taupo highway —

is “down”, but probably net yet “out”.
Shortly after 9.30, this morning the huge Titiokura deviation was
opened to traffic for the first time.

It was the culmination
of three years’ toil and
hardship undeér condi-
tions often atrocious.

‘There was sone jubilation
and a share of relief 6n the
part of Ministry ;of ‘Works
staff and otoristy alike this
morning, But the last lias
not been heard of the
okura_deviation,
| “Both ends have been
sealed, but 30 chains in the
middle — through the top
cut — are still far too wet
for_sealing.

It now seems that this
section will not be sealed
before next Spring at the
earliest, although Ministry
of Works_engineers enter-
tain faint hopes that an un-
seasonal dry spell might
allow the work to be done

Titi-

The top cut has presented
a drainage headache sincé
work began about threo
and only this
e were some
blockages after a downpour.

In some piaces the sides
of the cut are 80 feet high,
and, this Winter espeoci-
ally, there will be crossed
fingers In the hope that
the material remains
stable.

the same bope, for the devi-
ation has made a tremend-
ous improvement to
Napier-Taupo journey.
SHOCKING STATE

This morning the old sec-

ion was, as_usual, i
shocking_condition. Fog
ducedt visibility for motor-
ists ploughing through slus
and potholes on the twisting,
steep nortit-western side of
the saddle.

The elimination of this
section has cuf the Napier-
to-Taupo travelling time for
the average
about 10 minutes. However,
heavy traffic over the ol
route was always liable to
hold up motorists for some

me.

288

3

Heavy traffic will make |
the |

ourney in about 30
minutes’ less time, largely
because of the easier grades,
which are no steeper than
one in 11, compared tith the
old route's grade of one in

g

ven.
CRAWLER LANE

All tratfic will benefit by
the provision of a crawler
lane for uphill vehicles.

No opening ceremony was
planned this morning, but
by the time the Hawke's

Motorists should share

Bay Motor Co. Ltd’s Wai-{

rakei-bound bus arrived

sin
in a
2

about 930 a
gathercd,

The driver, Mr M. Doldge,
was handed a scroll by Mr
B. Broughton, Ministry of
Works overseer at Titiokura

crowd had

associated with the devia-
tion

n.

Everyone sensed the sig-
nificance of the occasion and
passengers alighted from the
Dus to take photographs and
be photographed.

Morning tea was served at
the Ministry of Works huts.+

inisiry engineer, Mr

J. B. Holland, said later that
the old route would be re-
tained in-case of any trouble
with the deviation.

“As you can see, the whole
place is running with water,”
he. sald,

§

WITH THIS HANDSHAKE, the Titickura deviation on the Napier-
Taupo highway was opened to traffic for the first time this morning.
The Hawke’s Bay Motor Co. Ltd. bus driver is Mr M. Doidge. . SHaking
his hand is the Ministry of Works overseer on the Titiokura project,
Mr B. Broughton. With him is Mr R. Brougham, inspector of works.




Napier - Taupo
State Highway 5




MOHAKA HOTEL : built 1882 - situated on a raised northern Mohaka River bank opposite the Punghuru
Stream falls at Church Crossing, later known as Ferry crossing. A stage coach stop to change horses.

First proprietor - Patrick Dooney (6 years). Believed hotel burnt down 1901, rebuilt by Edward Newbegin
1902, a little higher up on a small terrace , then leased to Mr. Haines.

Hotel closed a few years later due to lack of trade. Sold to Joseph King - ‘Lake Hotel” owner, Te Pohue.

The building was dismantled, transported and attached to the ‘Lake Hotel” at Te Pohue sometime before 1908.

Mohai(a Hotel, at Crch Crossng, : 1882. : Note - (centre), Mohaka liivé}, 2
Punghuru Stream water falls. Background, (just seen) Te Waka Range. (Left), road from
Napier descending to Mohaka River crossing. : 1882.






sl
Pungahuru Falls, height 25 meters (82 feet)
Pungahuru stream flowing into Mohaka River
just up stream from the Napier Taupo Road,
Mobhaka bridge. : Photo 2009.




FPynyahury
N\ 2/ Falsii(,
WALKING & DRIVING INSTRUCTIONS. (2009).
There is a car park at the end of McVicar Road. A gate is located on the road to the falls.
There is no track to the falls, they are across the Mohaka River, but may be seen from
the car park. The car park is the site of the upper Mohaka Hotel - 1882 to about 1908.




HAWKES BAY LICENSING DISTRICT.

Certificate to Authorise the Issue of an Accom-
modation License.

. Lo
;[v the undersigned a/wd/\uu JMJ\/\/\QP\AW

Stipendiary Magistrate, and the ehairman of the Licensing Committee for the District of Hawke's

Buy do hereby certify that at the Licensing Meeting, holden at 14/ 0 [17 GS on the

L‘K?

duy of [CVNE.S 18(1 the majority of the Committee at such Meoting

therefore authorise the issue to A AR O bj oo
jof an Accommodation License/for {Az\r\xm Wofe\pxt,o/ Stole

The fee payable in respect of the License is £ ST , and the same is paynl_)]e tuj./ew%)\jd
) i *
ﬂk /W\iu\k)mo/e) W\XQW;\ at W ouaAco forthwith

Given under my hand )

ey i, ol B g

1
the Lv “ day of # (VSN
/|

J Stipendiary Magistrate,

Lttt

Clerk to Licensing Committec.



MOHAKA BRIDGE. 36miles from Napier. (58km). - (brief history).

First bridge built in 1876 - swept away in April 1887 flood. Coaches and wagon traffic then had to “ford” the Mohaka
River while passengers were ferried across by canoe at Church Crossing - also known as ferry Crossing.

Second bridge - single lane opened 1902. Increasing heavy traffic from 1950s required the bridge to be strengthened
with the addition of steel plating between the piers and double ‘Bailey’ sections attached to the bridge sides.

Third bridge - double lane high level. Opened 11 October 1962. Span 708 feet (215m). Height above river 185 feet
(56m). From 17" March 2011 - 30" April 2011 bridge deck strengthened to take 50 ton heavy vehicles.

First bridge over the Mohaka River built 1876. April 1887 flood swept it away )
View looking up stream. Note : Mohaka Hotel on small terrace. (Taupo side of river).

Descriptive Metadata - IE CMS

Title Mohaka Bridge over the Mohaka River ~Note : Mohaka Hotel.
Date 1880 - First bridge built 1876. - swept away 1887 floods. |

Mohaka depression - for 40 km, Mohaka River follows a fault line.



Papers Past > Bay of Plenty Times > 21 April 1897 > Page 2 > Terrible floods in Hawkes Bay. GREAT LOSS OF LIFE.

Terrible floods in Hawkes Bay. GREAT LOSS OF LIFE.

Bay of Plenty Times, Volume XXIV, Issue 3537, 21 April 1897, Page 2

Terrible floods in Hawkes
Bay.
_ﬁ*——-
GREAT LOSS OF LIFE.
£100,000 worth of
damage.

At wvautang: bridge the repairs
will cost from £20,000 to £30,000.

Tavro, Tuesday.—Very heavy
rain fell here last Thursday and
Friday flooding all the creeks and
rivers and increasing the level of
the lake by about 12 inches.

A great deal of damage was
done to the roads southward.
Both on the Napier ard Tokaanu
roads the creeks are rising too
high to allow the coaches to pass
and heavy slips have also made
the traffic very difficult.

_The bridges”over the Mohaka
river on the Napier road have
been washed awuy and the coach
has been detained at Tarawera
since Friday morning.

. Thepassengers baundforNapier
intend returning -here to go riv
Rotorua and Auckiand as the
road is not likely to be open for
several davs.



MOHAKA BRIDGE CONTRACT.

Lands and Survey Department,
Wellington, September 26, 1898,

Written Tenders will be received at
this office untit noon of WEDNESDAY,
the 26th October, 1898, for the MOHAKA
BRIDGE CONTRACT, being the con-
struction of a bridge 363 feet or there-
abouts, in three spans, over the Mohaka
River, on the Mam Road. Napier to
Taupo. Tenders are to be marked on the
outside ‘Tender for Mohaka Bridge Con-
tract,” and addressed to the Hon. the
Minister of Lands, Wellington.

Drawings, specifications, and general
conditions may be seen at the Head
Oftice, Department of Lands and Survey,
Wellington; the District Land and Sur-
vey Office. Auckland, Napier, Christ-
church, and Dunedin. The lowest or any
tendcr will not necessarily be accepted.

By crder.
S. PERCY SMITH,
Surveyor General,

——
—

Tenders advertised to build Mohaka River bridge.
Napier Taupo Road. September 1898.

Successful contractor No2 Mohaka Bridge - Mc Garth & Burke. Contract price 6,240 pounds. ($12,480 dollar
Main materials - Australian heart Jarrah, NZ heart Matai. Wrought iron cylinder piers.



Mohaka River bridge - Napier Taupo Road.
Car approaching from Taupo.

Note : Piers not joined with steel plating.
Plating took place in 1950’s. : Photo 1914.




B Napier Taupo Road - single lane Mohaka Bridge. Opened 1902 - 1962.
- Photo 1914.



_© Bruce Ainsworth callection

pier Taupo Road - Mohaka l;ridge. Ncw?]igh level bndg; under construction.
(Builders - Wilkins & Davies Construction Co). Photo 1961.



Mohaka br ge Napler Taupo Road. Photo mid 1950 S: Vlew from north towards Napler

look at strengthening gussets (steel plating) between piers. During 1950’s ‘Bailey Bridge’ sections,

double height, placed along both inside, sides at deck height to strengthen the bridge now taking
ingly heavier traffic loads.




Ui



Mohaka bridge - single lane opened 1910. Far side, road right turns
90 degree to climb up the ce to Napier. : Photo 1962.




View acre
bridge to apier. Lower centre to right crushed road metal
stockpiled above flood level. : Photo 1962.




Mohaka 2™ Bridge build 1902- view downstream. (To Taupo left). . Photo March 1916.



Mohka River brdges — the ad and the new - Looking downsteam Fergus Faser

Mohaka River one way e. 1060 feet above sea level. (323 meters).




1"' October 1962.
Napier Taur




Mohaka bridge and deviation opened 11™ October 196






The Daily Telegraph, Napier 11" September 1963.

Spectacular blast

old Taupo

road

bridge destroyed

The 63-year-old Mohaka bridge, on the Napier-Taupo. highway,
came to a spectacular end today as explosions sent it plunging 40 feet to

the riverbed helow.

* After the first of a series of throe
demolition squad the northern sect
the riverbed. A further section
final section will be blasted tomorrow.

The Ministry of |
Works explosives ex-
pert, Mr J. Gerrard,
said: “It was a perfect
blast. We cut the
bridge just as we had
calculated, and every-
thing went just right.”
Tne old \’ ouae'x structure

ridges to
ka—has _been

concrete 1
d ch was opened

faie lhet rear.

BIG EXPLOSION

About 20 Ministry of
Works employees, Press
photographers and

sa
crash to the riverbed wit

®

{and

the old bridge

blasts by a Ministry of Works
secton of the bridge lay crumpled on
was to follow early this afternoon. The

Works bridge specialst, Mr
Is. D inkro

a !eam under Mr
|3, Frandin hag stripped the

ridge of Bailey bridging,
decking' and _stringers to
make it as light as possible

for the demolition, They will

later salvage the timber

from the riverbed for future
bridge maintenance work.

For the first blast the shot
firer, Mr Gerrard, inserted
nine “plugs of gelignite into
the wooden span on top of
the northern pier.

He lit a four-minute fuse,
climbed down a 40ft ladder,
sought safety on the
riverbed about 200 yards
a

Spectators at various van-
tage points about the steep
alley watched apprehen-
sively as blue smoke from
the burning fuse curled to-

thundering explosion which | wards the ¢h:

echced through the valley.

he first explosion B

d up brieft Labou
cpartment's’ safety inspec-
tor, Mr W. 3. Keough, o=

Ao make

the scene
y ents had |

been fulfilled.
The demolitio
vised by a Ministry

was super-

Exactly rnur minutes
after the fuse was lit the
explosion blasted through
the valley and the north-
ern s ction fell to the
riverbed with a roar.

Immediately, the squad

of began to plug the centre

section with gelignite, and it

| was expected that it would

also be blown down to the
riverbed early this after-
noon
mns TO BE LEFT
krow sald the re-
section
demolished tomor-
w. He said thie two piers
ould be'left for poseible
emergency use in the future.
“In the event of hosti-
lities or an _earthquake,
we may need to throw a
| Bailey bridge across the
| plers in the future” he
sald.

FIRST SECTION OF MOHAKA
BRIDGE COLLAPSES

THE FIRST SECTION of the Mohaka brldge to
be ‘blasted begins its_plunge to the riverbed
below this morning. The demolition is being
carried out in three stages—the last tomorrow.



The Daily Telegraph, Napier. 10" September 1963.

End of old bridge

The 63-year-old wooden
Mokaks _ bridge - on “the
Napier-Taupe road will be
‘blown wp by Ministry of
w-n.m

. OLD BRIDGE
COST ONLY
£15 PER FOOT

The old Mohaka bridge
on the Napier-Taupo mad

eost of 26545 135 7d—a
little more than £15 per
goot. ]

The cost of the new

high-level Mohaka road |

the old wooden structure
‘wasmore than £150  per

foot.
The Minist’y of Works'
materials officer,
Mg J.'B. 8. Huizing, said
foday, that the final bill for
e new bridge, including
all’ the trimmings “which
are still being_ completed,
would Be more than

208,000,

a spectacular
A demolition team’ plan to
Qv ing it up

detonate explosives at ea
‘end of !he brldze and let the

ure
ulunle 40 hel to_the river-
bed bel

Hmzlnt dis-
J ign

t has been decided
hal it has to go, and blow-
seems to be the
quickest and cheapest way
of getting rid of i

The ol bridge—one of (i
best-known in Hawke’s Bay
—was one of the first to span

the Mohaka. built i
1899-1900° by Messrs Me
Grath and Burke.

Bailey ~bridging used ‘o

| reinforce the ailing wooder
_ ! structure has been removed.

e
ible for. tomorrow’s xplo-
n.

THE BRIDGE
its days tomorrow.

: . . to end
| WITH EXPLOSIVES
! Holes will be drilled in
end members and will be uf hard timber for mainten-
! packed_with_explosives. .| ance work.” he

‘M Hoizing aaid that tim- " - He.said the old | bndge had
ber of the crumpled struc- |been maintained for a while
'lun— m mg riverbed ‘would ! after the opening of the new

“ hard | bridge as it was being used

e T Sumeult to et 20| by vehicles angeed Th. Care
| we.hope that the old bridge ; rying carthwork - materials
| Will provide us with plenty ' from the riverbed.
l——————“—g “But now the bridge is

{ | finished” he said. “We are
|

pa) 1 a ton for the
| Bailey bridging and it is
not being used at all now.
| 8 it has to come down.”



ROADING CONTRACTS - NAPIER TAUPO ROAD.

Stanley Palmer Tuck. - 1961 established two company’s based in Taradale. Hawke’s Bay.

G & C Wood Ltd, (Transport licences purchased. Company formed in the name of the licences ) built a
shingle plant -Tutaekuri River Taradale, then expanded into the field of road construction, carrying out many
contracts in Hawke’s Bay and on the Napier Taupo Road for the Ministry of Works.

Tuck Industrial Engineering Ltd, Taradale workshop, fitted out with modern engineering machines carried out
repair and welding work for contractors, including clients operating earthmoving machines on the Napier
Taupo Road.

G & C Wood Ltd, Napier Taupo Road camp éit& Napier side of the Mohaka River.
Mohaka bridge opened 11™ October 1962. : Photo February 1963.




G & C Wood Ltd, Napier Taupo Road camp site. Caravan sleep 8. Cookhouse
double canvas roof for coolness. Men worked long hours - Monday to Friday
Home for weeken: Photo Februarv1963.




G & C Wood Ltd, road metal spreading trucks carting base course
crushed river metal from Mohaka stock pile to road works on Napier
Taupo Road. : Photo February 1963.

Note : High level Mohaka bridge (top left).






i 30 s 5
G & C Wood Ltd, - Above Mohaka River, Taupo
side. Articulated tip truck- International AACO180.
Ford Thames Trader tip truck. Front new International
AACO180 tip truck. : Photo March 1963.



From new high level Mohaka bridge under construction before side
rails were attached. Upstream old bridge & Napier Taupo Road.1962




he effects of heavy transport on a critical bridge
linking Hawke's Bay with points north and south
have led to a significant FRP strengthening project
for BBR Contech.

Built in 1962, the two-lane, steel-trussed Mohaka River Bridge
is located in an isolated area along the Napier-Taupo Road
(State Highway 5). Elevated 50 metres above water level on two
reinforced-concrete piers, it stretches 215 metres across the river
— providing a vital thoroughfare for freight and passenger traffic
throughout the year:

Having undergone seismic strengthening in 2009, the bridge's
concrete deck now requires FRP strengthening to cope with
allowable heavier traffic loads. Working for main contractor Futton
Hogan, BBR Contech is responsible for three key components of
work on the underside of the deck: injecting flexible sealant into
more than 1200 metres of cracks in the structure; applying 740
strips of 1.85-metre-long Sika CarboDur to the concrete surface;
and finally applying a corrosion-inhibiting coating to give extra
protection against the elements.

The ten-week project poses a number of challenges, not least
the need for rigorous safety measures given the requirement
to work on scaffolding high above the river Time and traffic
management is also a key component, as one lane of the bridge
is closed and the speed limit has been reduced to 30 kilometres
per hour. However, the result will be worth the wait, with a bridge
designed to cope with traffic for many years to come.

Client: NZ Transport Agency
Main Contractor: Fulton Hogan
Engineer: Opus International Consultants

hl; work was started on the 17™ March 2011




Increasing traffic loads across the Mohaka River
Bridge on the Napier to Taupo Road (State Highway 5) have
of the concrete deck.
Spanning 215 metres across the gorge and elevated 50
metres above the water level, the bridge is heavily exposed
to the envi . Although ing could have been
achieved using additional steel plates, the Sika® Carbodur®
fibre reinforced polymer was chosen by Opus International
Consultants Ltd due to its lighter weight, easier installation
and corrosion resistance.

A survey of the bridge had also revealed some deterioration
of the concrete. Sika's new range of MonoTop® repair
mortars specially formulated for structural repairs were
chosen. This new range complies with the European
Standard EN1504 ‘Products and systems for the repair of
reinforced concrete”. The chosen mortar, Sika® MonoTop®-
412N complies with class R4 of EN1504 Part 3 - the
strongest class in the standard — and achieves 55 MPa
compressive strength after 28 days. The bonding primer,
Sika® MonoTop®-910N, has been formulated to prowde
optimum and

with the rigorous requirements of EN1504 Part 7. Together
these products provided the Engineer with the confidence
that a highly durable structural repair was specified.

Clearly, obtaining maximum durability from the
structural strengthening is essential for maximizing
the value of the works, and any further concrete
deterioration needed to be minimized. Sika's
Ferrogard®-903 impregnation was selected
as the ideal way to achieve this. It was easily
applied to the reinforced concrete surfaces by
§ = i 3 spray. Ferrog: 903 1o the steel
ridge spans 215 metres and is ~ o — ———— ¥ reinforcement where it mmbns the initiation of steel
50°'metres above the water level. 4 . - corrosion and slows the rate of any existing corrosion,
s % thereby significantly reducing ongoing maintenance
costs and extending the life of the bridge still further.

The project was undertaken for the NZ Transport
Agency by main contractor Fulton Hogan. Structural
ing work was by BBR Contech.

® Innovation & |since
Sika (NZ) Ltd | 06 745 269 .sika.co.nz Consistency | 1910



MAORI WARS : THE HAU HAU WARS 1864 -72.
(SOURCE: The NZ Wars: A History of the Maori Campaign and Pioneering Period: Volume 1 1).
(Chapter 34) : Posts on the Napier - Taupo Road.

Te Haroto - fifty four miles from Taupo (87 kilometres) and 50 miles (80 kilometres) from Napier. (The Ngati-
Hineuru Tribe). A blockhouse had been erected earliest than the posts already mentioned. of 1869. This post was
a square building with an upper storey projecting 2 - 3 feet over the lower building. A deep well was dug inside
the blockhouse. The position was a commanding one, with a panorama of the mountainous country for many
miles (kilometres) around. A mile away (1.609 kilometres) is the highest point on the Napier -Taupo Road,
Tupurupuru 2,980 feet (909 meters) on the Turangakumu Range.

Te Haroto -Te Haroto Station homestead was originally built
above the Mohaka River on flat land later known as “Mad Mile”
and later shifted up,near to the Military Blockhouse at Te Haroto.
The run carried about 14,000 head of sheep. Photo 1900.



MAORI WARS : THE HAU HAU WARS 1864 -72.
(SOURCE: The NZ Wars: A History of the Maori Campaign and Pioneering Period: Volume 11).
(Chapter 34) : Posts on the Napier - Taupo Road.

Te Haroto - fifty four miles from Taupo (87 kilometres) and 50 miles (80 kilometres) from Napier. (The Ngati-
Hineuru Tribe). A blockhouse had been erected earliest than the posts already mentioned. of 1869. This post was
a square building with an upper storey projecting 2 - 3 feet over the lower building. A deep well was dug inside
the blockhouse. The position was a commanding one, with a panorama of the mountainous country for many
miles (kilometres) around. A mile away (1.609 kilometres) is the highest point on the Napier -Taupo Road,
Tupurupuru 2,980 feet (909 meters) on the Turangakumu Range.

Napier Taupo Road - Te Haroto Native village. View towards Taupo & Turangakumaml. (Skylir;e)
Note : Napier Taupo Road at right climbing towards Turangakuma summit. Photo 24™ April 1915.



Te Haroto1953(top mill
Photo K & J Smith

Top Mill”.
2 miles l(18 0 S Yrom Napier.
935. Closed ]‘)(L bu:h cut out.
sk tearooms, (moved to this site 1961- road devias







Geo. GARDNER & SONS
Sawmillers

Management of Geo. GARDNER & SONS and
individual Mills.

The Sawmilling Business began at
Mangatainoka, between Woodville and Pahiatua
in 1890. About 1892 George Gardner was not
well, so recalled son David, from Australia
where he was working in the printing
industry, to manage the family business.

After milling ceased at Mangatainoka
the mill moved to Hukanui (a little further
south) then to Taoroa (east of Taihape) with
a second mill managed by Percival Gardner,
further north at Turangarere.

In the mean time David forseeing the
end of the bush at Taoroa appraoching, rode
on horseback (the main trunk railway was not
open then) through to the Oio area, just
south of Taumarunui, and arranged the
purchase of 3,000 acres.

When the Taoroa Mill finished it was
shifted to Oio. Up to 10,000 super feet of
timber were milled a day at the Oio mill
where they had 2 planer machines. 1In the
early 1930°’s when the end of the bush at Oio
was in sight, David began negotiating for
the Te Haroto bush with the Maori owners,
the Maori Land Court and of course the Bank.
The main area of this block (4800 acres) was
freehold. As well two small blocks of a few
hundred acres had the cutting rights
secured. Most of this area was in good
milling timber, but there was some open
country and some too steep to grow milling
timber. The main timber was rimu with a
fair percentage of matai, some white pine
and rare totara.

AL
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George Gardner & Sons. Te Haroto. Napier Taupo Road.
Logging truck & driver Willie Bush. 1940°s.

L e
George Gardner & Sons Te Haroto (Top Mill).
Rimu logs on mill skids. Arnold Woods. 1940’s.




Geo. Gardner & Sons had their own timber outlets
in Masterton and Avondale. The Masterton yard was
managed by George’s daughters Alice and Fanny.

Oio finished cutting in 1935, the mill was dismantled
and shifted to Te Haroto by road. This was quite an
undertaking in those days, particularly over the old
Taupo - Napier road which was narrow, winding and
extremely steep in many places.

Cutting began at Te Haroto in 1936. There were plenty
of timber retailers in Napier and Hastings, so it was
decided to operate on a wholesale basis only.

After a couple of years there was enough demand to
warrant a second mill. This was built at the other end
of the bush (north/Tarawera end). This began cutting
in 1939 as the Tarawera Timber Company, usually
referred to as the Bottom Mill.

The land was too steep to use bush tram- lines (light
railway) for transporting of logs from bush to mills, so
road transport was the only way. This entailed the
construction of many miles of roadway. For a short time
a contractor was used, but most was done with their
own equipment and staff.

Both mills continued cutting until 1963, when the
equipment, houses ect, were sold. The land had
previously been sold for farming some years before.

All mills were managed and worked by members of
the Gardner families.

Writer : a Gardner family member.

Children believe from Georg Gardner’
Bottom sawmill, waiting school bus to ki S oo
Tarawera school. About 1948, Before shifted to Tuck

" Tarawera School. About 1948.
sawmill 1951.




David GARDNER

David Gardner, a well known King
country resident was highly respected by
all who knew him, particularly in the saw

milling world. He hdd milling interests
in the Forty Mile Bush, Taihape and
Taumarunui districts and of later years in
Hawkes Bay. He entered the milling

business in 1890 and was managing director
of George Gardner & Sons during the whole
of that time until failing health compelled
his relirement a few months before is
death. He was chairman of directors of
the Fiji Kauri Timber and Land Coy. Fiji
during the life of that company’s
successful operations. In his Youth he
was employed by the Hawkes Bay Herald,
Christchurch Sun and Melbourne Angus.
Upon the death of his father he returned to
N.Z. and took over the management of the
Company’'s first sawmill at Mangatainoka in
the Forty Mile Bush. His long experience
and knowledge of sawmilling was much sought
after and his advice and guideance assisted
many in solving the many vital and
important problems of the trade. David
was for many years an enthusiastic member
of the Taumarunui Bowling Club.

David died 1952 and is buried in the
Mangunui cemetery along with his wife Ada
Caroline who died 1940.






And the two giant saws, with the cutting edge
travelling at 10,000 feet a minute, make short wor
of a log, and will cut through steel with just the
same ease. Many logs come to the mill with olc
steel telephone spikes in their innards, the tree
having grown over them







From the breaking down bench, the timber moves to
the breast bench, where it is thicknessed to size
for transportation to its final destination. Picture
shows Ken Beams on the head and Dan Smith on
the tail, with Monty Kahukiwa (extreme left) on the

goose



From the hauler, the logs are hauled over well made
toads by powerful 165 h.p. deisel trucks to the mill
proper. Ken Charlton, the driver of the loaded truck,
is a young Canadian lumber jack who is enjoying
himself on a working holiday in New Zealand




General view of the mill with loads on the right
waiting to be loaded onto the breaking down bench




BACK COUNTRY TIMBER MILL

3 R
A major industry in New Zealand is the milling of
ur native and exofic forests: timber plays a very
tge part in our lives despite the ever increasing
ompetition from plastics and suchlike. This picture
feature shows the working of & back country mill
ch is situated at Te Haroto on the Taupo Road,
will very shortly close after a period of twenty-
years of continuous work cutting nalive timbe
of 0,000 board feet a year. Mills such The start of a log on its journey to the
as_this, on—n wmmq in difficalt country, do con- Alexander clears an obstruction as the 13";11".2:3'133
from a

o

tribu



George Alexander sniping and deeing the log for
sy towing while Arnold Wood shackles the lo
to a bulldozer for towing to the skid.




Neal Thompson hauls the log to the skid with his
bulldozer. Bulldozers are used for this work as they
serve the dual purpose of log hauling and road
making. All access roads and bridges have to be

made by the miller.






the steam hauler
cading bay on







George Gardner & Sons Ltd, sawmill Te Haroto,
Napier Taupo Road.
International K Series logging truck. Driver, Willie Bush. 1940s.



Genrge Gardner & Sons Ltd sawnnll Te Hamtn
Napier Taupo Road.

Rimu logs on mill skids (Top Mill). Arnold Woods (skiddy).
1940s.



Napier Taupo Road - The summit Turangakuma Hill 2,700 feet (824 meters) above
<ea level. Vauxhall car facing towards Taupo. Photo : 24" April 1915.



, TOURIST SERIES.8024
ROAD, 3700 FT. ABOVE SEe(Ni

an mm /7 AV

Turangakuma road height 2,700 feet (824 metres) above sea level. Napier Taupo Road. 1920’s.

[ncorrect information on photo Turangakuma height is 2,700 feet. Not 3,700feet as on photo.
he highest point, Napier Taupo Road, - About half kilometre north of Iwitahi (60/8) on the
angitaiki Plains.




Napier Taupo Road - Hawke’s Bay Motor Co, Cadillac service car. Turangakuma
Summit 2,700 feet (824 meters) above sea level. Photo 1933.



A SUMMIT *
TURANGAKUN A

2650 FEET
ABOVE STA LEVEL

e Al
929 Standard ‘)hp car park e lur: un
ar parked at the Turangak S
e g na Summit on Napier Taupo Road.



Turangakuma Summit tearooms 5 feet (80 eters) ¢ e @ E an Tuck
(Mar Director Tuck Bros Ltd) & Eric Ee ck Bros (Ne 5 95k




Napier Taupo Road - Turangakuma Hill. The parked car is a Clement Talbot, facing Taupo just
past the summit. Distant hills - Tataraakina bush. Photo : 10" October 1914.



urangakuma Summit tearooms 2,625 feet (800meters) : sea level Napier -
po Road. Stan Tuck, Managing Direc < Bros ‘ric Eaton, Tuck
Car - FORD 1949 V/8.
pinner was. (centre grill).
his reliable car went on to clock over half a million miles, mostly over the ‘old’




Tuck Bros Ltd, International LF190 nearing Turangakuma Summit (old road) 2,625 feet (800
Meters) above sea level. This truck was the first to tow a 4 wheel trailer on the Napier Taupo road.




Tuck Bros (Napier) Ltd, - International LF 190 climbing Pohokura hill. Height 2.400
- Old Napier Taupo Road. : Photo 1¢




Tuck Bros (Napier) Ltd, - International LF 190 climbing Turangakuma h_ill
on the old Napier Taupo Road. Height 2,625 feet (800 meters). : Photo 1953.

Furangakuma Hill 2,625 feet (800 meters) - old Napier Taupo Road, (Deviation opened October 1961).

The usual loaded trucks travelling to Napier would take 1-1Y% hours to climb this hill. Steep gradients of up to one
in six (every 6 feet horizontally. a rise of one foot). Trucks consumed approximately 1 gallon of fuel for ever 3
miles, - engine heat and dust in the cabs was horrific, particularly in the summer.

From the base, Waipunga Valley at Double Crossing, to the Summit was 3.8 miles ( 6.1 kilometres).

Tuck Bros Ltd, - International LF190 timber truck with trailer, climbed Turangakuma hill with a timber load ol three
times the load of other trucks in just 35 minutes in comfort. and not needing to use all of its lower g




NEW DEVIAT ION

NEW WAIONE
BRIDGE SITE

l\uma dc‘\mlmn upu]cd 17" October 1961.Road summit height reduced by 300 feet (92 meter
mlh 5 miles (8 kilometres) maximum grade 8 percent. Old road 17 percent. - View towards Napier







. ‘ s
Napier Taupo Road. Turangakuma Summit tearooms.
Proprietors - Mr & Mrs Morris. : Photo 1955.




Turangakumu Summit 2,650 feet (800 meters) - old Napier Taupo Road. : Photo 1958.
Note : lower level - Napier Taupo Road rounding hill to Stoney Creek, a hill climb, then overlooking Tuck Bros,
[ataraakina sawmill. (Centre to right) Tataraakina mill bush road follows base of hill into bush area to far




View fromiTurangakuma hill - centre Napier Taupo Road.
Tuck Bros.- Tataraakina Timber Co. bush (centre to right).






Children believed from Geo! sardner & Sons,(bottom sawmill
e of Turan, i ng the Waipunga valley) waiting
bout 1948.




Turangakuma Hill - Napier Taupo Road, - Tuck Bros bush road - middle to right
& beyond. Note : Napier Taupo road winding down Taurangakuma hill past

George Gardner’s - Tarawera Timber Co. sawmill houses along side the Napier Taupo
Road. The sawmill further down was in off the Napier Taupo Road. Photo : 1951.




Aﬁébhalmers HD 21 Bulldozer - Turangakuma
deviation 1960. (Standing) Michael Tuck.(collection).



Allis Chalmers HD 21 Bulldozer.
Note : controls left side - drivers
Vision along side of engine.
Turangakuma deviation. 1960.



Allis Chalmers HD 21 crawler tractor towing
25 cubic yard (19 cubic meters) Carry-all scoop.
(Standing). Michael Tuck. : Photo 1960.
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Hawke’s Bay Motor Co. bus coming down Turangakumu Hill. Note : Gardner’s Sawmill
eft middle of pho March 1953
pier Taupo Road -Turangakuma hill (old road). From its base at Double Crossing to summit
feet (800 metres) above sea level, was a distance of 3.8 miles (6.1 kilometres).




Napier Taupo Road - Double Crossing, (crosses two
streams that flow into the Waipunga River) near the base
of Turangakuma Hill. Waipunga River enters a gorge as
it flows on to the Mohaka river. Photo 1915.



Napier Taupo Road - stage coach (blurred) trave]lingto Napier crossing Stony Creek. Unidentified
men sitting on left. Photo : September 1886.



# R :

Napier Taupo Road - Stone;Cre;k bridge. : Photo 1930°s.



Tavpo-haprer Road. =E¥%, 693y,

5

Stoney Creek section on the Napier Taupo Road between Te Horoto and Tarawera : Photo 19:



ol RAts 4 .
Downer & Co Wellington : contractors. Stoney Creek -
Napier Taupo Road - Armco culver (22 foot diameter- largest Armco
culvert in NZ) and road alignment. : Photo 2™ February 1966.

Other Stoney Creek Armco culvert contract - Daily Telegraph Napier news paper reference -
see September 13" 1966 : 29™ October 1966 : 10™ December 1966: 22" February 1967.



BIGGEST
IN N.Z.

Improvements at Stoney
Creek, on the Napier-Taupo
way, have been largely |
overshadowed by the mag-
nitude of the Titiokura and
Runanga deviations.

Stoney Creek will, how- |

The Titiokura deviation is
completed. The Runanga
deviation, on which work
has already started, will not
be opened to traffic inside|
three years.

CREEK DIVERTED |

Stoney Creek, a short dis-
tance on the Napier side of
Tarawera, is now a hive of
activity as the _contractor,
Downer and Co. Ltd., pushes |
ahead with a three-quarter
i mile diversion.

The creek itself was last

culvert — the biggest of its
kind in New Zealand, and
probably in the southern
emisphere.
The project involves 300~

works and the new road
level will be 52 feet higher
than the creek-bed.

Mr R. D. Grant, Ministry
of Works resident engineer
at Napier, said today that
the Stoney Creek work was
going ahead well.

THIS SUMMER

“Trafic should be using
it this Summer,” he said.

To close the gap between
Downer's work at_Stoney
Creek and the Tarawera
camp, the existing road will
be strengthened and sealed
“as is.”

Grades will be of the
order of one in 10 (slightly
steeper than the Titiokura
deviation) and the align-
ment will be comfortable
tor speeds of 35 to 40 m.p.h.

STONEY CREEK trickles into the mouth-of the massi

which has been completed on the Napier-Taupo road. W'erhsete:r’e:ulf;

diverted last week from its original bed which the bulldozer (right) is

filling in.  The carry-all above the culvert is dumping material which
will eventually rise to a level of 52 feet above the creék bed. =

DAILY T

sRAPH Napier, 20" December 1966.



Stoney Creek deviation looking north.

Stoney C rmco culvert & realignment: Opened 20™ D
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USE BY CHRISTMAS ?

SATURDAY, .DECEMBER 10. 1966

1t could, however, mean
the difference between
suceess or disappointment
in the bid to open thenew:

deviation' plctured above

by Christmas.
Bad weather has been
a problem since work first

Stoney Creek

DAILY TELEGRAPH Napier, 20" December 1966.

sector

fic and vehicles towing cara-  tion today. 1t will defnitely
sealed before Christmas.
o en o *Started towards the end: ~The Ministry of Works
of last year, work onthe  resideni engineer at Napir,
deviation has been dogged Mr R. D. Grant, has appeal-
by bad weather. ed for drivers fo obey the
ere were two phases to speed restrictions over the
ra IC the deviation. Downer and deviation.
Co. carried out a Zormation "
b lmnkm 5t fhe Nasier end, _ With the completion of
The 23-miles Stomey | while the Ministry of Works| Stoney Creek, the final major
Creek deviation on the |effected improvements be- Droject :“dthev“"!?”w‘y is the
Napler - Taupo highway (fween this point and the Funanga deviation.
arawera mill si
was opened to traffic fo- | TAEINCTR RIS,
day. n done by Emoleum Ltd. |
The project, which cost al- (Rumrun) and some by the |
most 2160000, eliminates Minis
some of the' worst grades on| iy a ahors disiance was\
the highway and wil be of| still unsealed when the fret |
special benefit to heavy trai-| traffic rollpd over the devia- |



